



Office of the City Clerk

City Hall
121 N. LaSalle St.
Room 107
Chicago, IL 60602
www.chicityclerk.com

Legislation Text

File #: O2018-89, Version: 1

ORDINANCE

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO:

Section 1. Section 8-4-087 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by deleting the language stricken and inserting the language underscored, as follows:

8-4-087 Chronic illegal activity premises.

(a) Definitions. As used in this section, unless the context indicates otherwise:

"Chronic illegal activity premises" means any premises that is the subject matter of three or more calls for police service on three different days within any 90-day period resulting in (1) a case report documenting an investigation of illegal activity within the premises; or (2) enforcement action against any tenant or person associated with the premises for illegal activity occurring within the premises or within one block or one thousand feci of the premises. Provided, however, that the following shall not be counted when determining whether a premises meets the definition of a chronic illegal activity premises:

(1) any illegal activity reported to the police department by the building owner or the building owner's agent via the city's 9-1-1 emergency telephone system; and

2) incidents of domestic violence, as defined in the Illinois Domestic Violence Act of 1986, as amended!

3) any contact made to the police or other emergency services with the intent of preventing domestic or sexual violence, or seeking an emergency response to domestic or sexual violence:

(4) any contact made to police or other emergency services by, on behalf of, or otherwise concerning an individual with a disability, where the purpose of that contact is related to that individual's disability;

5) any incident of actual or threatened domestic or sexual violence against a tenant, a household member, a guest or any other party that occurs in or on the premises of a residential dwelling unit;

6) criminal activity or a local ordinance violation occurring in or on the premises of a residential dwelling unit that is directly relating to domestic violence or sexual violence and is reported by the victim or a party seeking services or assistance for the victim-~~shall not be counted when determining whether a premises m~~

~~ffects the definition of a chronic illegal activity premises.~~

"Corporation counsel" means the corporation counsel of the City of Chicago or the corporation counsel's designee.

(Omitted text is not affected by this ordinance)

Section 2. Section 8-4-090 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by deleting the language stricken and inserting the language underscored, as follows:

8-4-090 Drug and gang houses, houses of prostitution and other disorderly houses.

a) Any premises used for prostitution, illegal gambling, illegal possession or delivery of or trafficking in controlled substances, or any other activity that constitutes a felony, misdemeanor, business offense or petty offense under federal, state or municipal law is hereby declared to be a public nuisance; provided that no public nuisance or violation of this section shall be deemed to exist unless: fi) {1} the property is used for more than one such offense within any six-month period; ;or (ti) {2} the offense for which the property is used is punishable by imprisonment for one year or more.

(a-5) The following shall not provide, in whole or in part, a basis for a declaration under this section that a property is a public nuisance:

- 1) any contact made to the police or other emergency services with the intent of preventing domestic or sexual violence, or seeking an emergency response to domestic or sexual violence;
- 2) any contact made to police or other emergency services by, on behalf of, or otherwise concerning an individual with a disability, where the purpose of that contact is related to that individual's disability;
- 3) any incident of actual or threatened domestic or sexual violence against a tenant, a household member, a guest, or any other party that occurs in' or on the premises of a dwelling unit;
- 4) criminal activity or a local ordinance violation occurring in or on the premises of a dwelling unit that is directly relating to domestic violence or sexual violence and is reported by the victim or a party seeking services or assistance for the victim and where the perpetrator is not related to or located at the property.

b) Any person who owns, manages or controls any premises and who (i)-: (1) encourages or permits an illegal activity described in subsection (a) that is not subject to an exception described in subsection (a-51) to occur or continue on such premises; or (h) (2) fails to

implement reasonable and warranted abatement measures identified in the notice issued pursuant to subsection (e), or subsequently agreed to, or other abatement measures which successfully abate the nuisance within the 30-day period following the notice, or within any other agreed upon period, shall be subject to a fine according to the schedule set forth in subsection (c). Each day that a violation of this section continues shall be considered a separate and distinct offense. No person shall be found in violation of (b)(H²) of this section unless the city proves by a preponderance of the evidence that the abatement measures were reasonable and warranted, and that the defendant knowingly failed to implement them. A person may be found in violation of (frM+)(0 or (b)(*)(2) of this section regardless of whether an order of abatement is issued under subsection (d[^] or in violation of (b)(i)EJQ regardless of whether a notice has been given under subsection (e). A fine in accordance with subsection (c) may be assessed in a court of competent jurisdiction or in the buildings hearings division of the department of administrative hearings.

(c) Upon a finding of liability under this ordinance, the defendant shall be fined ffl(1) not less than \$3,000.00 ~~and not~~ nor more than \$6,000.00 for any offense defined as a Class X felony by the Criminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5, as amended (for purposes of this section, "Criminal Code");(H)[2] not less than \$1,500.00 ~~and not~~ nor more than \$3,000.00 for any offense defined as a Class 1 felony by the Criminal Code; (w)(3) not less than \$700.00 ~~and not~~ nor more than \$ 1,400.00 for any offense defined as a Class 2 felony by the Criminal Code; (W)(4) not less than \$500.00 ~~and not~~ nor more than \$1,000.00 for any offense defined as a Class 3 felony by the Criminal Code; (v){5} not less than \$300.00 ~~and not~~ nor more than \$1,000.00 for any offense defined as a Class 4 felony by the Criminal Code; and (vi) (6) not less than \$200.00 ~~and not~~ nor more than \$ 1,000.00 for all offenses not otherwise specified.

(Omitted text is not affected by this ordinance)

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication.

Emma Mitts
Alderman, 37th Ward

C if